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HOUSE BILL No. 5060
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HOUSE BILL No. 5060

September 23, 2003, Introduced by Rep. Ward and referred to the Committee on Commerce.

A bill to anmend 1976 PA 331, entitled
"M chi gan consuner protection act,"
by amendi ng section 3 (MCL 445.903), as anended by 2002 PA 613.

THE PECPLE OF THE STATE OF M CHI GAN ENACT:

Sec. 3. (1) —Untatl+r— A person shall not commt any of the
foll owi ng unfair, unconscionable, or deceptive nethods, acts, or
practices in the conduct of trade or commerce: —are—unlawful—and
are defined as follows:

(a) Causing a probability of confusion or m sunderstandi ng as

to the source, sponsorship, approval, or certification of goods

or services.

(b) Using deceptive representations or deceptive designations

of geographic origin in connection with goods or services.
(c) Representing that goods or services have sponsorship

approval, characteristics, ingredients, uses, benefits, or
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guantities that they do not have or that a person has
sponsorshi p, approval, status, affiliation, or connection that he
or she does not have.

(d) Representing that goods are new if they are deteriorated,
altered, reconditioned, used, or secondhand.

(e) Representing that goods or services are of a particul ar
standard, quality, or grade, or that goods are of a particular
style or nodel, if they are of another.

(f) D sparaging the goods, services, business, or reputation
of another by false or msleading representation of fact.

(g) Advertising or representing goods or services with intent
not to di spose of those goods or services as advertised or
repr esent ed.

(h) Advertising goods or services with intent not to supply
reasonably expectable public demand, unl ess the advertisenent
discloses a limtation of quantity in i mediate conjunction with
t he adverti sed goods or services.

(i) Making false or msleading statenents of fact concerning
the reasons for, existence of, or amounts of price reductions.

(j) Representing that a part, replacenent, or repair service
is needed when it is not.

(k) Representing to a party to whom goods or services are
supplied that the goods or services are being supplied in
response to a request nmade by or on behalf of the party, when
t hey are not.

() Msrepresenting that because of sone defect in a

consuner's hone the health, safety, or lives of the consuner or
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his or her famly are in danger if the product or services are
not purchased, when in fact the defect does not exist or the
product or services would not renove the danger

(m Causing a probability of confusion or of m sunderstanding
With respect to the authority of a sal esperson, representative,
or agent to negotiate the final terns of a transaction.

(n) Causing a probability of confusion or of m sunderstanding
as to the legal rights, obligations, or renedies of a party to a
transacti on.

(o) Causing a probability of confusion or of m sunderstanding
as to the terns or conditions of credit if credit is extended in
a transacti on.

(p) Disclaiming or limting the inplied warranty of
nmerchantability and fitness for use, unless a disclainer is
clearly and conspi cuously discl osed.

(gq) Representing or inplying that the subject of a consuner
transaction will be provided pronptly, or at a specified tine, or
within a reasonable tinme, if the nerchant knows or has reason to
know it will not be so provided.

(r) Representing that a consunmer will receive goods or
services "free" or "w thout charge", or using words of simlar
inport in the representation, without clearly and conspi cuously
di sclosing with equal prom nence in imediate conjunction with
the use of those words the conditions, terns, or prerequisites to
the use or retention of the goods or services adverti sed.

(s) Failing to reveal a material fact, the om ssion of which

tends to m sl ead or deceive the consuner, and which fact could
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not reasonably be known by the consuner.

(t) Entering into a consuner transaction in which the
consuner waives or purports to waive a right, benefit, or
i munity provided by law, unless the waiver is clearly stated and
t he consunmer has specifically consented to it.

(u) Failing, in a consuner transaction that is rescinded,
cancel ed, or otherwise term nated in accordance with the terns of
an agreenent, advertisenment, representation, or provision of |aw,
to pronptly restore to the person or persons entitled to it a
deposit, down paynent, or other paynment, or in the case of
property traded in but not available, the greater of the agreed
value or the fair market value of the property, or to cance
within a specified tinme or an otherw se reasonable tine an
acquired security interest.

(v) Taking or arranging for the consuner to sign an
acknow edgnment, certificate, or other witing affirm ng
acceptance, delivery, conpliance with a requirement of |aw, or
ot her performance, if the nerchant knows or has reason to know
that the statenment is not true

(W) Representing that a consunmer will receive a rebate,

di scount, or other benefit as an inducenent for entering into a
transaction, if the benefit is contingent on an event to occur
subsequent to the consummati on of the transaction.

(x) Taking advantage of the consumer's inability reasonably
to protect his or her interests by reason of disability,
illiteracy, or inability to understand the | anguage of an

agreenent presented by the other party to the transacti on who
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knows or reasonably should know of the consumer's inability.

(y) Gross discrepancies between the oral representations of
the seller and the witten agreenent covering the sane
transaction or failure of the other party to the transaction to
provi de the proni sed benefits.

(z) Charging the consunmer a price that is grossly in excess
of the price at which simlar property or services are sold.

(aa) Causing coercion and duress as the result of the tine
and nature of a sales presentation.

(bb) Making a representation of fact or statenent of fact
material to the transaction such that a person reasonably
believes the represented or suggested state of affairs to be
other than it actually is.

(cc) Failing to reveal facts that are material to the
transaction in light of representations of fact nmade in a
positive manner.

(dd) Subject to subdivision (ee), representations by the
manuf acturer of a product or package that the product or package
is 1 or nmore of the follow ng:

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (ii), recycl ed,
recycl abl e, degradable, or is of a certain recycled content, in
violation of guides for the use of environnmental marketing
clains, 16 C.F. R part 260.

(ii) For contai ner hol di ng devices regul ated under part 163
of the natural resources and environnental protection act, 1994
PA 451, MCL 324.16301 to 324. 16303, representations by a

manuf acturer that the container holding device is degradabl e
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contrary to the definition provided in that act.

(ee) Representing that a product or package is degradabl e,
bi odegradabl e, or phot odegradable unless it can be substanti ated
by evidence that the product or package will conpletely deconpose
into elements found in nature within a reasonably short period of
time after consuners use the product and di spose of the product
or the package in a landfill or conposting facility, as
appropri at e.

(ff) Ofering a consuner a prize if in order to claimthe
prize the consuner is required to subnmt to a sales presentation
unless a witten disclosure is given to the consuner at the tine
the consumer is notified of the prize and the witten disclosure
neets all of the follow ng requirenments:

(i) I's witten or printed in a bold type that is not snaller
t han 10- poi nt.

(i) Fully describes the prize, including its cash val ue, won
by the consuner.

(iii) Contains all the terns and conditions for claimng the
prize, including a statenment that the consumer is required to
subnmit to a sales presentation

(iv) Fully describes the product, real estate, investnent,
service, nenbership, or other itemthat is or will be offered for
sale, including the price of the | east expensive itemand the
nost expensive item

(gg) Violating 1971 PA 227, MCL 445.111 to 445.117, in
connection with a honme solicitation sale or tel ephone

solicitation, including, but not limted to, having an
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i ndependent courier service or other third party pick up a
consuner's paynment on a hone solicitation sale during the period
the consuner is entitled to cancel the sale.

(hh) Enforcing or attenpting to enforce an agreenent to
provi de services to a consuner that contains an automatic renewal
provi sion unless both of the following are net:

(i) Before he or she enters into the agreenent, the consuner
signs an acknow edgnent that the agreement contains an automatic
renewal provision

(i) At least 30 days before the end of the current term of
t he agreenment, the consuner is provided by certified mail with a
notice that indicates that the agreenent will be automatically
renewed unl ess the consuner acts to term nate the agreenent.

(2) The attorney general nmay pronul gate rules to inplenent
this act under the adm nistrative procedures act of 1969, 1969
PA 306, MCL 24.201 to 24.328. The rules shall not create an
addi tional unfair trade practice not already enunerated by this
section. However, to assure national uniformty, rules shall not

be promul gated to inplenent subsection (1)(dd) or (ee).
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